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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Apollo Hospitals
and Lifestyle Limited ("the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements
of subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformitv with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended (‘'Ind AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, and their consolidated
profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and their
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Other
Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The said report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.
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¢ Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited
by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance
on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far
as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial statements audited by the other
auditors.

¢ When we read the Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as
required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive loss, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
frregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of eight subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect
tota! assets of ¥ 23,027 lakhs as at March 31, 2022, total revenues of ¥ 16,426 lakhs and net
cash inflows amounting to ¥ 194 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred
to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books, returns and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f)

g)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A"
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and subsidiary companies
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those
companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the auditor’s reports of subsidiary companies incorporated in India, the remuneration paid
by the Parent and such subsidiary companies to their respective directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group.

ii) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

iv) (@) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of
such subsidiaries that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 48(vi) to the consolidated financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent
or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatscever by or on behalf of the Parent or any of such subsidiaries
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of
such subsidiaries that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 48(vii) to the consolidated financial statements, no
funds have been received by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent
or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that
performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or
the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v) The Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid any
dividend during the year and have not proposed final dividend for the year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO” / “the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of
respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting
under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent, we report that
there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports
of the said companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

"\
\/

For DELOITTEHASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration

Balakrishnan

(Partner)
Membership No. 201193)
(UDIN: 2%21193ALVQEE8045)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 20, 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Apollo Hospitals and Lifestyle Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Parent”) and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Llhe Parent and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, inciuding the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls systein over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to eight
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

hartered Accountant
17366W/W-10001

(Firm’s Registration No.

Nl

Gafie w%ﬂrishnan
(Partner)
== (Membeship No. 201193)
(UDIN: 2\230 193ALVQEE8045)
Place: Hyderabad ="
Date: May 20, 2022



Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
{All amounts are in % lakhs unless otherwise slated)

. _-__-Notes . March 31.2(5);2‘ March 31 ,/"Z:);It
A ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plan( and equipment 3a) 26,122 24,657
(b) Right-of-use of assel 33 35,423 36,746
(c) Capital work-in-progress 3(b) 1,012 568
{d) Goodwill 4 2,700 2,700
{e) Other intangible assets 5 193 228
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investiments 6 18 18
(ii) Other financial assets 7 3,763 3,258
(g) Income tax assets (net) 9A 4,102 1,987
{(h) Other non-cunent assets 10 1,449 1,105
Total non-current assets o 74,782 71,262
Curreat assets
(a) Inventories 11 4,641 2,112
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 14,289 9,288
(ii) Cash and cash equivalenls 13 5,589 4,210
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 10,392 10,483
(iv) Other financial asscts 7 708 694
(c) Conhract assets 3,202 1,654
(d) Other curient assets 10 2,171 1,504
Voral enrrent pssets 40,992 29,945
TOTAL ASSETS T 1,15,774 1,01,207
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 12,850 12,840
(b) Other equity 16 (6,104) (10,468)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 6,746 2,372
Non-controlling interests 17 818 63l
Total equity 7,564 3,003
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 20,818 22,848
(ii) Lease liabilities 33 44,841 44,901
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 354 354
(b) Provisions 20 885 €06
(c) Deferred tax liabililies (net) 8 32 55
Total non-current liabilities 66,930 68,764
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 4,388 3,181
(ii) Trade payables 21
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 400 145
Total o-utstanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small 25,902 18,342
enterprises
(ifi) Lease liabilities 33 3,795 3,450
(iv) Other financial lizbilities 19 1,534 1,974
(b) Provisions 20 442 R
(c) Income tax liabilities (net) 9B 4 3
(d) Other current liabilities 22 4,815 2,034
‘Total current liabilities 41,280 29,440
Total liabilities 1,08,210 98,204
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,158,774 1,01,207
Corporate information |
Significant accounting polictes 2
See accompanying notes forming part of the lidduted financial [
In terms of our report attached {0 /
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on bel;;Fpl Bonrd of Directors | J
Chartered Accountants ApoliogHenlth afd v Limited \ /
(Finn's Registration No: 117366 W/W-100018) \ N ,v” /
7 QO 2
-~ 3
Ganesh Balakrishnan Sangita Redily Krishnan Akhileswaran
Partner Managing Director Director
{DIN: 90006285) (DIN: 5299539}
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabpd Place: Clhiennar
Date : May 20, 2022 i 1 Many 20 P20 Date : May 201, 2022
b \),ﬂ
i Meses Wty
“> \C} 36082
Ashish Makeshwarl Kamal Saffon PV
Chicf Financial Officer Compuny Sezretary
+ Hfdenbad Ploge: Hyderabad Place Hyderabad

Date : Ma).' 20,2022 Date : May 20, 2022 Date : May 20, v.?



Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in X lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Not For the year ended For the year ended
otes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 Revenue from operations 23 1,31,251 68,178
I Other Income 24 965 2,450
I Total Income (I+1) 1,32,216 70,628
IV  Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 34,837 14,486
Cost of services 26 38,924 19,903
Employee benefits expenses 27 20,092 15,663
Finance costs 28 6,931 6,689
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 9,430 8,753
Other expenses 30 17,736 11,726
Total expenses (IV) 1,27,950 77,280
V  Profit /(Loss) before tax (III-1V) 4,266 (6,652)
VI Tax expense
(1) Current tax 1 5
(ii) Deferred tax (23) (18)
Total tax expenses (22) (13)
VII Profit / (Loss) for the year (V-VI) 4,288 (6,639)
VIII Other comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities (204) (250)
(ii) income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or - 1
loss
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (204) (249
IX Total comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year (VII+VIII) 4,084 (6.888)
Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 4,192 (6,482)
Non controlling interests 96 (157)
4.288 (6,639)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company (202) (249)
Non controlling interests (2) -
(204) (249)
Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 3,990 (6,731)
Non controlling interests 94 (157)
4,084 (6.888)
Earnings per equity share of X 10 each, fully paid: 32
Basic and diluted (in %) 3.26 (5.29)
Corporate information 1

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Finn's Registration No: 117366W/W-100018)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Apollo Health-atid Lifestyle Limited

(i

Managing Director
(DIN: 00006285)

Place: Hyderabad
Date : May 20, 2022

Ganesh Balakrishnan
Partner

Krishnan Akhileswaran

Director
(DIN: 5299539)

Place: Chennai
Date : May 20, 2022

)

Posan Mo bt
Ashish Maheshwari *

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date : May 20, 2022

Place: Chennai
Date : May 20, 2022

Plheer
Date : May 20, 2022

J

Kamal Saboo
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad
Date : May 20, 2022



Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in 2 lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

_ _ March 31, 2022 ____March 31, 2021
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit /(Loss) before tax 4,266 (6,652)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9,430 8,753
Loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) / written off 96 (12)
Finance costs 6,294 6,230
Net gain/(loss) arising on actuarial valuations - -
Interest income (689) (558)
Net gain/(loss) arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL - )
Liabilities no longer required written back (16) 375)
Loss/(gain) on forex fluctuation 3) -
Rent expenses on termination of lease (105) (139)
Rent waiver and concessions (24) (1,192)
Fmpairment loss recognised under expected credit loss model for trade receivable 909 585
Share based payment to employees 256 343
Expenses recognized in respect of shares issued in exchange of (23)
consultancy services )
20,414 6,959
Movenents in worki
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assels:
- Trade receivables (5,910) (1,901)
- Inventories (2,529) (626)
- Other assets (3,051) (1,521)
- Balances held as margin money deposits (13) 30)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operati
- Trade payables 7,834 3,459
- Other liabilities 2,781 133
- Provisions 205 107
(683) (379)
Cash generated from operating activities 19,731 6,580
Income taxes paid 2,119) 2,441
Net cash flows operating activities |A] 17,612 9,021
B. Cash used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Including capital work-in-progress, capital advances, capital (6,799) (5,337)
payable and other intangible assets)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 40 27
Net cash outflow on acquisition of share of subsidiaries - (360)
Movement in other bank balances 104 (8,724)
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual fund units - 728
Interest received 600 473
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (6,055) (13,193)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the Company - 12,005
Proceeds from issue of preference shares by subsidiary company 150 137
Proceeds from issue of sharcs by subsidiary company - 2
Repayment of long term borrowings (3,189) (928)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 2,041 500
Proceeds from short - term borrowings (net) 367 (425)
Interest paid (2,110) (1,246)
Payment of lease liabilities (7,437) (5,375)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities ( C) (10,178) 4,670
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,379 498
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,210 3,694
Cash balance acquired on the acquisition of subsidiary 18
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,540 4,210




Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes:
(i) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of
(a) Balances with banks

- in current accounts 3,118 3,115
(b) Cash on hand 247 330
(c) in deposit accounts
- Original maturity less than 3 months 2,224 765
Cash and cash equivalents as per consolidated statement of cash flows 5,589 4,210
* denotes amounts rounded off being less than rupees one lakh
See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Apollo Health Lifestyle Limited
(Firm's Registration No: 117366W/W-100018)
Ganesh Balakrishnan &KKM Krishnan Akhileswaran
Partner Managing Director Director
(DIN: 00006285) (DIN: 5299539)

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Chennai
Date : May 20, 2022 Datg- Date : May 20, 2022

e — (@528 A - 20901 —
éhivukuln Ashish Maheshwhri ¢
ive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date : May 20, 2022 Date : May 20, 2022 Date : May 20, 2022
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Apollo Health and Lifestyle Ltd
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated) S

Note 4: Goodwill As at As at
__ March 31,2022 _March 31, 2021
Canrying amount of Goodwill 2,700 2,700
Goodwill Total
1. Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2020 2,482 2,482
Additional amounts recognised from business combinations occurring during the year 235 235
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,717 2,717
Additional amounts recognised from business combinations occurring during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,717 2,717
11. Accumulated Impairment losses
Balance as at April 1, 2020 17 17
Charge for the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 17 17
Charge for the year : &
Balance as at March 31, 2022 17 17
I11. Net carrying valuc
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,700 2,700
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,700 2,700
As at As at
Segment March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sugars 1,845 1,845
Dental 368 368
Spectra 250 250
Dialysis 2 2
Cradle (refer note 49) 235 235
2,700 2,700

Goodwill of Rs. 2,700 Lakhs (March 31, 2021 : Rs.2,700 Lakhs) has been allocated to the Sugars, Dental, Spectra, Dialysis and Cradle CGUs, The estimated value in
use of this cash generating unit is based on future cash flows using a 5% annual growth rate for the periods subsequent to the forecast period of 6 years as the
management believes this to be the most appropriate timescale for reviewing and considering annual performance before applying a fixed terminal valuc multiple to
the final cash flows and terminal growth rate of 5% for subsequent periods. Discount rate of 15% is considered. Based on management assessment of discounted
futwe cash lows no impairment triggers or indicators were identified. Consequently, no impairment provision is made.

Space intentionally left blank




Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 5  Other Intangible Assets

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Carrying amounts of
Computer software 193 228

193 228
Computer software Total

I. Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at April 1, 2020 1,063 1,063
Additions 116 116
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,179 1,179
Additions 132 132
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,311 1,311
I1. Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2020 770 770
Charge for the yeai 181 o 181
Balance as at March 31, 2021 951 951
Charge for the year 167 167
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,118 1,118
III. Carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021 228 228
Balance as at March 31, 2022 193 193

Space intentionally left blank




Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 6  Imvestments As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No of shares Amounts No of shares Amounts
Non-current
Investments in unquoted equity instruments
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI (refer note 45)
Searchlight Health Private Limited 2,01,000 18 2,01,000 18
Sunrise Medicare Private Limited 78 - 78 -
Total non-current investments (A) 18 18
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 18 18
* denotes amounts rounded off being less than rupees one lakh
Note: The Group has complied with number of layers prescribed under clause 87 of sec 2 of the Companies act 2013, read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
layers) Rules, 2017.
Note 7  Other flnancial assets As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost:

(Unsecured, considered gond unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits 3,763 396 3,258 507
Interest accrued:

- from bank deposits - 71 - 55
Tender deposits - 26 - 27
Other receivable - 215 - 105

Total 3,763 708 3,258 694
Note8  Deferred tax balances As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets - -
Deferred tax liabilities 32 55
Total 32 55
. e . Recognised on Recognised in other
2021-22 Opening Recogaisetliniproflc acquisition of comprehensive Closing balance
balance or loss o .
subsidiary income

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment (72) 26 - - (46)
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI (¢)) - = B 1)
Provision for employee benefits 18 (3) - - 15

(55) 23 - - (32)
. Recognised on Recognised in other
2020-21 Opening Recognised in profit acquisition of comprehensive Closing balance
balance or loss R k
subsidiary income

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment (72) 13 (13) - (72)
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI 1) . - m
Provision for employee benefits 12 5 - | 18

(61) 18 (13) 1 (55)

Note 9A Income tax assets (net) As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Advance tax/ TDS receivable (net of provision for tax) 4,102 1,982

Total 4.102 1.982
Note 9B Income tax Liabilities (net) As at As at
March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 4 3

Total

4 3




Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 10 Other assets As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Capital advances 687 - 755 -
Balances with statutory / government authorities (VAT, GST efc.,) 241 7 200 -
Less: Provision for credit impaired advances 20 - 20 -
221 7 180 -
Prepaid expenses 24 179 32 221
Advance contribution for gratuity (refer note 37) - 9 . 2
Advance to employees - 194 - 161
Advances to suppliers
- Considered good = 1,782 43 1,120
- Considered credit impaired - 29 - 29
- 1,811 43 1,149
Less: Provision for credit impaired advances - 29 - 29
N 1,782 43 1,120
Other deposits |telephone, electricity deposits, for other utility, etc.) 517 - 95 -
Total 1,449 2,171 1,105 1,504
Note 11 Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Medical consumables and others 4,641 2,112
Total 4,641 2,112
Note 12 Trade receivables As at As at
March 31, 2022 Marech 31, 2021
- Unsecured, considered good 14,289 9,288
- Credit impaired 3,052 2.342
17,341 11,630
Allowance for credit impaired (3,052) (2,342)
Total 14.289 9,288
Notes:

i. The credit period on sale of services generally ranges between 30-60 days.

ii. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Ciedil Luss (ECL) model for measurement and recognilion ol impairment loss owards expectled tisk of
delays and default in collection.

iii. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from providing healthcare services. No interest is charged on the outstanding balance, regardless
of the age of the balance. There are no customers who represent more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables.

iv, The Company maintains an allowance for impairment of doubtful accounts based on aging of receivables, historical experience of collections. Accordingly, the
Company creates provisions for past due receivables, based on certain percentages. Besides, based on the expected credit loss model, the Company also provides for
allowance for doubtful debts based on the provision matrix as follows.

Ageing Expected credit allowance %
0-1 year upto 35%

1-2 year upto 54%

2-3 year upto 80%

> 3 year 100%

v. Includes Trade receivables from related parties amounting to ¥ 7,037 Lakhs (March 31, 2021: T 3,629 Lakhs) (Refer Note 38)

vi. Movement in the expected credit loss allowance.
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balance at beginning of the year 2,342 1,901
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses (net) 909 585
Provision released (199) (144)

Balance at end of the year 3.052 2,342




Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 13

Note 14

vii. Trade receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2022

Outstanding for the following periods from the date of transaction

Bianticulas Less than 6 months 6 moynet:: tol 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years R
disputed T ivables —
UndispuledIiedeireceiyablcs 9,735 2,510 1,200 261 493 14,289
considered good
i ivables ~
R putegl Rde=se{yabies 350 392 518 472 1,096 2,828
credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables —
considered good ) ) ) B ) )
plspl.lled Trade receivables — credit ) ) ) 7 217 224
impaired
Total 10,085 2,902 1,808 740 1,806 17,341
Less: allowance for credit loss 350 392 518 479 1,313 3,052
Net Trade receivables 9,735 2,510 1,290 261 493 14,289
Trade receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2021
Outstanding for the following periods from the date of transaction
i Total
Particulars Less than 6 months é mo;l::: Ll 1-2 ycars 2 -3 years More than 3 years ota
Undl.sputed Trade receivables 6.942 627 931 214 574 9,288
considered good
di Ty eivables -
Vg 201 101 292 230 1,178 2,002
credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables —
considered good ) = B B
].)lspl:lted Trade receivables — credit B i ; 51 289 340
impaired
Total 7,143 728 1,223 495 2,041 11,630
Less: allowance for credit loss 201 101 294 279 1,467 2.342
Net Trade receivables 6,942 627 929 216 574 9,288
Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(a) Balances with banks
- in current accounts 3,118 3,115
(b) Cash on hand 247 330
(c) in deposit accounts
- Original maturity less than 3 months 2,224 765
Total 5.589 4,210
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
(a) in deposit accounts March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- Original maturity more than 3 months 10,252 10,356
(b) in earmarked accounts
- Balances held as margin money against guarantees given 140 127
Total 10,392 10,483

Space intentionally left blank




Apollo Health and lifestyle Limited
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 15

Equity Share Capital As at As at
Marvch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorised Share capital ;
150,000,000 Equity Shares (as at March 31, 2021: 150,000,000) of ¥ 10 each 15.000 15,000
Issued and subscribed capital comprises :
128,500,522 fully paid (as at March 31, 2021: 128,400,522) of Z 10 each 12,850 12,840
12.850 12,840

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Number of shares

Share capital

Balance as at April 1, 2020 11,93,74,172 11,937
Issued during the year 90,26,350 903
Balance at March 31, 2021 12,84,00,522 12,840
Issued during the year* 1,00,000 10
Balance at March 31, 2022 12,85,00,522 12,850

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares;

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10/~ each. Fach holder of equity share is eligible for one vote per share
held. In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets af the Campany in proportinn to the number of equily shares
held by the shareholders. ‘I'he dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting.

As per the terms of "Shareholders agreement and Subscription agreement” dated October 26,2 016 entered into amongst International Finance Corporation (IFC), the
Company and Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited (AHEL), holding company. IFC has the right to exercise put option on shares from the end of 8th year till the end of

12th year of subscription either on the Company or on the parent entity i.e., Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited at
- principal amount (initial investment by investors) plus 2% IRR per annum on AHEL or
- fair market vatue on exercise date on AHLL
(refer note 46)

*During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has alloted 100,000 equity shares of Rs. 133 each (including premium of Rs. 123 each) consequent to conversion

of Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs).

(i) Details of shares held
by the holding company:

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

—— ;&mount Number of shares held

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited

(iv) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of the equity shares:

Numiber of shures held Amount
8,76,36,943 8,764 8,76,36,943 8,764
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

% holding of equity

Number of shares held Number of shares held

% holding of equity

shares shares
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 8,76,36,943 68.20% 8,76,36,943 68.25%
International Finance Corporation 2,00,45,405 15.60% 2,00,45,405 15.61%
IFC EAF Apollo Investment Company 2,00,45,405 15.60% 2,00,45,405 15.61%

(v) Details of shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2022

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Particulars No. of shares % of total % Change during the No. of shares % of total shares % Change during the
shares year yeur

M/s.Apollo Hospitals 8,76,36,943 68.20% -0.05% 8,76,36,943 68.25% -2.00%
Enterprise Limited
Dr.Prathap C Reddy 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Ms.Prectha Reddy 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Ms.Suneeta Reddy 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
Ms.Sangita Reddy 10 0.00% 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%




Apollo Health and lifestyle Limited
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in % lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 16 Other equity excluding non-controlling interests

As at As at
Muarch 31, 2022 Muarch 31, 2021

(i) Securities premium reserve 91,816 91,693
(i) Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income (84) (84)
(iii) Share options outstanding account 981 725
(iv) Capital reserve on common control transactions (7,543) (7,543)
(v) Capital reserve (v))] (22)
(vi) Retained earnings (91,247 (95.237)
(6,104) (10,468)
(i) Securities premium reserve For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balance at beginning of year 91,693 80,591
Issue of shares during the year 123 11,102
Balance at end of the year 91,816 91,693

This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(ii) Reserves for equity instruments through other comprehensive income For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of year (84) (84)
Net fair value changes on investments in equity instruments at FVTOC! - -
Balance at end of the year (B4) (84)

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of

amounts reclassified to retained earnings when those assets have been disposed of.

(iii) Share options outstanding account For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of year 725 400
Arising on share-based payments 256 344
Shares allotted during the year - -
Reversed during the year - (19
Balance at end of the year 981 725

Share options outstanding account relates 1o share vplivns granted by e Company o its ewmployees under ils einployee shase uption plan. These will be lranslerred W

retained earnings after the exercise of the underlying options.

(iv) Capital reserve on common control transactions For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balance at beginning of year (7,543) (7,543)
Contribution during the year - -
(7,543) (7,543)

Balance at end of the year

This represents loss on common control transaction arising on purchase of investments in Alliance Dental Care Limited and Apollo Dialysis Private Limited from Apollo

Hospitals Enterprise Limited, parent company.

(v) Capital Reserve For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of year 22) (13)
Contribution during the year - 2
Equity component of compound financial instruments 3) (11)
Others (2) -
() (22)

Balance at end of the year

(vi) Retained earnings For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of year (95,237) (88,506)
Profit /(Loss) attributable to owners of the Company 4,192 (6,482)
Other comprehensive income arising out of remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (Net of taxes) (202) (249)
Balance at end of the year (91.247) {95,237)

Retained eamings represents the cumulative undistributed profits of the Company and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

ond’f,
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Note 17 Non-controlling interests For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at beginning of year 631 419
Share of profit for the year 96 (157)
Share of non-controlling interest on issue of share capital by subsidiary - “4)
Equity component of compound financial instruments 89 373
Capital reserve 4 -
Other comprehensive income (2) =
Balance at end of the year 818 R 631
Note 17.1 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non controlling interests:
The table shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material non controlling interests:
Proportion of ownership .
Name of the Subsidiaries interests and voting rights held i) a"(frcl:tf‘(: tto non controlling Accumulated non-controlling interests
by non-controlling interests Interests
March 31, March 31, .
2022 2021 March 31, ?022 March 31, 202¢ March 31, 2022 March 31, 202!
A.po'llo Dialysis Private 30.94% 30.94% 61 (13) 509 357
Limited
A.]hz'mce Dental Carc 30.91% 30.91% (1 (150) (3706) (365)
Limited
Apo!lo Sugar Clinics 20.00% 20.00% 46 6 685 639
Limited
96 (157) 818 631
Note 18 Borrowings
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Unsecured - at amortised cost
(i) Debentures - - - 222
(ii) 0.1% Non convertible, non cumulative redeemable 352 - 267 -
preference shares
Secured - at amortised cost
Long term loans from banks 20,478 3,560 22,600 2,498
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs 12 R 19 8
20,466 3,552 22,581 2,490
Loan repayable on demand from banks - 836 x 469
Total 20,818 4,388 22,848 3,181

Summary of borrowing arrangements

(i) The Company has issued zero% Optionally Convertible Debentures for ¥ 9,550,000 on March 29, 2016. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has
alloted 100,000 equity shares of Rs. 133 each (including premium of Rs. 123 each) consequent to conversion of Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs).

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Face value of debentures issued 222 55

Lapsed during the year - (5)
Net debentures issued 222 50

Interest expense = 172

Less: Repayment of debentures 89

Less: Conversion of debentures in to equity 133

Current portion of outstanding Debentures - 222

(ii) During the year the company has issued 186,267 0.01% Non-cumulative Non-convertiable Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS) of Rs. 10 per NCRPS at a
premium of Rs. 258 per NCRPS, totalling to Rs.500 lakhs. The company has determined the liability component to Rs. 204 lakhs which is disclosed as a financial liability
under "Borrowings" and balance of Rs.296 lakhs is classified as capital contribution under "Other equity".

During the FY 2020-21, the company has issued 2,981,133 0.01% Non-cumulative Non-convertiable Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS) of Rs. 10 per NCRPS at a
premium of Rs, 43 per NCRPS, totalling to Rs.1580 lakhs and 275,139 0.01% Non-cumulative Non-convertiable Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS) of Rs. 10 per
NCRPS at a premium of Rs.156.14 per NCRPS, totalling to Rs.457 lakhs. The company has determined the liability component to Rs.831 ]:'aktis]; 'w{yhiul; is disclosed as a
financial liability under "Borrowings™" and balance of Rs.1206 lakhs is classified as capital contribution under "Other equity". = N
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(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Summary of borrowings from banks

Particulars

Principal O/S
as on March
31, 2022

Principal O/S
as on March
31,2021

Details of repayment
terms and Maturity

Nature of Security

Rate of Interest
March 31, 2022

Rate of Interest
March 31. 2021

Yes Bank

1,982

The loan is repayable in
28 structured quarterly
instalments

Note (a) below

NA

9.85%

ICICI Refinance

1,632

The loan is repayable in
25 structured quarterly,
instalments

Note (b) below

7.39%

NA

HDFC Bank

4,367

4,839

The loan is repayable in
28 structured quarterly
instalments

Note (¢) below

6.84%

9.00%

ICICI Bank

481

The loan is repayable in
26 quarterly instalments

Note (d) below

8.10%

NA

HDFC Bank

5,946

6,988

The loan is repayable in
22 quarterly instalments

Note (e) below

6.80%

9.00%

I'ederal Bank

3,488

Yes Baok lvan s
repayable in 22 quarterly
instalments

Note () below

NA

9.10%

ICICI Refinance

2,655

The loan is repayable in
14 quarterly instalments

Note (g) below

6.81%

NA

ICIC1 Bank

976

The loan is repayable in
20 quarterly instalments

Note (h) below

7.95%

NA

HDFC Bank

2,901

3,089

The loan is repayable in
28 quarterly instalments

Note (i) below

6.80%

8.90%

HDFC Bank

2,087

2,089

The loan is repayable in
28 structured quarterly
instalments

Note (j) below

7.50%

9.00%

ICICI Bank

1,656

1,785

The loan is repayable in
28 structured quarterly
instalments,

Note (k) below

7.65%

9.30%

ICICT Bank

486

500

The loan is repayable in
36 equal  monthly,
instalments

Note (1) below

7.70%

7.70%

ICICI Bank

836

410

Renewed anually

Note (m) below

7.70%

9.30%

HDFC Bank

13

35

The loan is repayable in
60  Equal  monthly
instalments

Note (n) below

10.25%

10.25%

HDFC Bank

276

304

The loan is repayable in
20 structured quarterly,
instalments

Note (o) below

8.55%

9.56%

HDFC Bank

563

The loan is repayable in
16 structured quarterly
instalments

Note (p) below

8.48%

NA

HDFC Bank-OD

59

Renewal -annualy

Note (q) below

NA

10.25%

Notes:

a. The term loan from Yes Bank is secured by first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets and current assets and with letter of comfort from Apollo Hospitals

Enterprises Limited.

b. The term loan is secured by aggregate value (as per most recent audited accounts) of gross fixed assets and capital work in progess are reduced by the accumulated
depreciation and all indebtness (as per most recent audited accounts) having equivalent or superior charge over such fixed assets/WIP.

c. The term loan is secured by first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets, rental and lease deposits and letter of comfort from Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited.

d. The term loan is secured by aggregate value (as per most recent audited accounts) of gross fixed assets and capital work in progess are reduced by the accumulated
depreciation and all indebtness (as per most recent audited accounts) having equivalent or superior charge over such fixed assets/WI1P.

e. The term loan is secured by First Pari-passu charge on movable fixed assets, current assets and letter of comfort for 20% of the loan value from Apolio Hospitals
Enterprises Limited and Letter of Guarantee for 80% of loan value from the Parent Company.

f. The term loan is secured by First Pari-passu charge on movable fixed assets, current assets and letter of comfort for 20% of the loan value from Apollo Hospitals
Enterprises Limited and Letter of Guarantee for 80% of loan value from the Parent Company.

g The term loan is secured by aggregate value (as per most recent audited accounts) of gross fixed assets and capital work in progess are reduced- I:} lhr,e uccumul.euud
depreciation and all indebtness (as per most recent audited accounts) having equivalent or superior charge over such fixed assets/WIP. y

h. The term loan is secured by aggregate value (as per most recent audited accounts) of gross fixed assets and capital work in progess are reclu-‘..cd by the nuul‘uu]a\ad
depreciation and all indebtness (as per most recent audited accounts) having equivalent or superior charge over sach fixed assets/WIP,

i. The term loan is secured by charge on movable fixed assets, current assets (receivables) and letter of comfort from Apollo Hospitals enterprises.] fmifid.
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 19

Note 20

Note 21

Note 22

j- The term loan is secured by charge on movable fixed assets, current assets (receivables) and letter of comfort from Apollo Hospitals enterprises Limited.

k. The tenn loan is secured by charge on movable fixed assets, current assets and letter of comfort from Apollo Hospitals enterprises Limited.

1. The term loan is secured by extension of second ranking charge over all the existing securities (including mortgage) created in favour of 1CICI Bank.

m. The Overdue facility is secured by first charge on entire fixed assets (both presenst and future) and first charge on entire current assets including receivables (both

future and present).

n. Secured by movable fixed assets and current assets.

o. Secured by exclusive charge on current assets and movable fixed assets (present and future) of the company with the corporate guarantee of the Parent Company and

personal guarantee of Dr. GSK Velu.

p. Secured by exclusive charge on current assets and movable (ixed assels (prosent and future) of the company with the corporate guarantee of the Parent Company and

personal guarantee of Dr. GSK Velu.

q. Secured by exclusive charge on current assets and movable fixed assets (present and future) of the company with the corporate guarantee of the Parent Company and

personal guarantee of Dr. GSK Velu.

(iv) The Company has used the borrowings for the purposes for which it was taken.
(v) The quarterly returns of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with books of account,

Other financial liabilities As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost;
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 93 - 129
Other liabilities
- Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment - 1,314 - 1,723
- Retention money payable - 30 - 25
- Security deposit 354 24 354 24
- Others - 73 - 73
Total 354 1,534 354 1,974
Provisions As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Employee benefits (refer note 37)
- Compensated absences 256 177 198 137
- Gratuity 629 265 408 174
Total 885 442 606 311
Trade Payables As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Payables
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 400 145
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 25,902 18,342
Total 26,302 18,487
Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particular
RLUCITOTY Les::::n ! 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 years apst
MSMI 400 - - - 100
Others 20,730 1,872 1,636 1,664 25,902
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - ”
Disputed dues - Others - = s e 4
Total 21.130 1.872 1,636 1,664 26,302
Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2021
Quistanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particul
artieniars Les‘s/:::n b 1- 2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years pzt
MSME 145 - - = 145
Others 10,335 4,061 2,007 1,939 18,342
Disputed dues - MSME . - - = =
Disputed dues - Others = = - * >
Total 10.480 4.061 2,007 1.939 18,487
Other current liabilities As at As at
Murch 31, 2022 Muarch 31, 2021
Deferred revenue 7 88 59
Advances from customer '_' 2,338 591
Statutory remittances (TDS, GST, etc.) >y 2,048 1,138
Customer loyalty programme / 341 246
Total 4,815 2,034
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Note 23 Revenue from operations (refer note 40)

(a) Sale of services

(b) Other operating revenues
- Commission on pharmacy revenue
- Franchisee fee
- Others

Total

Note 24 Other income

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

1,21,620

353
3,202
6,076

1,31,251

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

63,689

261
2,336
1,892

68,178

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as
at fair value through profit or loss:
Interest on
- bank deposits 548 251
- income tax refund 68 259
- other financial assets carricd at amortisced cost 73 48
689 558
b) Others
- Rental income - 1
- Liabilities no longer required written back 16 375
- Rent waiver and concessions (refer note 33) 24 1,192
- Others (one time settlement from franchisee and etc.,) 128 171
168 1,739
c¢) Other gains and losses
- Gain/loss on sale of assets - 13
- Gain/loss on forex fluctuations 3 +
- Gain/loss on termination of leases 105 139
- Net gain/(loss) arising on financial gssets designated as at FVTPL = 1
108 153
Total [a+b+c] 965 2,450
* denotes amounts rounded off being less than rupees one lakh
Note 25  Cost of materials consumed For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Medical consumables 34,837 14,486
Total 34,837 14,486
Breakup of cost of materials consumed
9 For the year ended For the year ended
e March 31,2022 March 31 , 2021
Opening Inventory 2,112 1,485
Add: Purchases 37,366 15,113
Less: Closing inventory 4,641 2,112
Total 34,837 14,486
Note 26 Cost of services For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Professional fee to doctors 23,055 15,828
Laboratory tests and ambulance charges 2,603 2,249
Franchisee service charges 10,701 331
Sample transportation charges 1,273 745
Others (Patient diet expenses, Bio medical wastage etc.,) - 1,292 810
Total 38,924 19,963

Note 27 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and wages
Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Gratuity expenses (refer note 37)
Share based payments (refer note 39)
Staff welfare expenses
Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

17,755
879
244
256
958

13,715

\ 705
@ | 163
| B8 344
: 736

20,092

15,663
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Note 28

Note 29

Note 30

Finance costs

Interest on
- bank overdrafts and loans
- liability component of preference shares
- Lease Liability (refer note 33)
- Others
Fair valuation of financial liability
Bank and other finance charges
Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5)
Depreciation on right-of-use of assets (refer note 33)

Total depreciation and amortisation expenses

Other expenses

Power and fuel
House keeping expenses
Rent
Repairs and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others
Communication expenses
Office maintenance expenses
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Printing and stationery
Recruitiment charges
Advertisement and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
Payment to auditors (refer note below)
CSR expenditure
Seminar expenses
Credit impaired Trade receivables and advances written off
Less: Provision released

Impairment loss recognized under expected credit loss model for trade

receivables
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)/ written oft
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note: Payment to auditors (including GST)
Statutory audit fee

Other services

Reimbursement of expenses

68
-67

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

2,001
27
4,220
46

637

6,931

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

4285
167
4,978

9,430

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

2,119
2,093
1,327

340
623
1,553
603
652
99
228
55

50
3,461
957
2,247
121

5

5

1
909

96
192

17,736

111

121

144
-144

For the year ended
___ March 31,2021

2,181
18
3,811
48
172
459
6,689

For the year ended
March 31,2021

4,141

181
4431
8,753

For the year ended
March 31,2021

1,701
1,554
1,415

211
427
1,113
397
515
82
156
63

30
1,632
516
1,081
104

23

585

120
11,726

96

104
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Note 31: Contingent liabilities and commitments As at

Note 32

March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

A Contingent liabilities

(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

- Income tax* 903

- Service tax** 35

- Other (in respect of compensation demanded by the patients / their relatives). The cases are pending

. . . . 1,780
with various Consumer Disputes Redressal Commission.#

# Based on expert opinion obtained, the management believes that the Company has good chance of success in these cases

903
35

938

* During the FY 2018-19, the Parent Company has received an order from income tax department for the Assessment year 2016-17. The Parent Company has

filed an appeal against the said order and contending that no additional provision for tax expenses is necessary in the financial statements.

** During the FY 2020-21, the group has received a showcause notice from Service tax department against the audit carried on by the department for the
period Oct-2014 to June 2017 aggregating to Rs. 35 Lakhs excluding interest and penalties. The Company has deposited a sum of Rs. 35 Lakhs under protest

against this demand and based on the legal opinion the demand has been considered as sontingent,

B Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining Lo be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of

capital advances) 369

Earnings per share For the year ended
March 31, 2022

2,530

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

(i) Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Group A 4,192
Basic

(il) Weighted average number of equity shares of T 10/- cach outstanding during the ycar B 12,84,81,618
Dilution

(iii) Effect of potential equity shares on employees stock option outstanding -
(iv) Weighted average number of equity shares of % 10/- each outstanding during the year C 12,84,81,618

Earnings per eyuity share of ¥ 10/- each
(v) Basic (in %) - [A/B] 3.26
(vi) Diluted (in %) -[A/C] * 3.26

(6,482)

12,24,32,657

1,66,667
12,25,99,324

(5.29)
(5.29)

*The effect of dilution on account of convertible instruments being anti-dilutive, diluted EPS is restricted to basic EPS, as per para 43 of the Ind AS - 33

Earning per share.

Space intentionally left blank
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Note 33 Leases

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance 36,746 32,500
Additions 4,026 9,216
Deletions 371) (539)
Depreciation (4,978) (4,431)
Closing Balance 35,423 36,746

The aggregate depreciation exponse on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization cxpensc in the statcment of profit and loss

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance 48,351 42,907
Additions 3,978 8,877
Deletions (476) 677)
Finance cost accrued during the year 4,220 3,811
Rent waivers and concessios (24) (1,192)
Payment of lease liabilities (7,413) (5,375)
Closing Balance 48,636 48,351

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current lease liabilities 44,841 44,901
Current lease liabilities 3,795 3,450
Total 48.636 48,351

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on discounted basis

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Within one year 3,795 3,450
After one year but not more than five years 13,393 13,849
More than five years 31,448 31,052
48,636 48,351

Note:

The MCA issued amendments to Ind AS 116, “Leases”, provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification. The amendments allowed the expedient to be applied to COVID-19-related rent concessions to payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021
and also require disclosure of the amount recognised in profit or loss to reflect changes in lease payments that arise from COVID-19-related rent concessions.
The reporting period in which a lessee first applies the amendment, it is not required to disclose certain quantitative information required under Ind AS 8.
Accordingly, the group recognised Z 24 lakhs (¥ 1,192 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021) as a benefit in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended
March 31, 2022.

Space intentionally left blank
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Note 34 Segment information

(i) Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
The Directors of the company identitied Chief Executive Officer(CEO) of the company as Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).
Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on the model of healthcare services delivered. The directors of the Company have chosen to organise the company around differences in products and services.
Accordingly, Clinics and Diagnostics maternity hospitals ,cradles dental , Sugars and Dialysis Clinics have been identified as the operating segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
The segments includes a number of speciality hospitals/ clinks/diagnostic/surgery care centre formats in various cities within India, each of which is separately
reviewed by the CODM. For financial statements presentation purposes, these individual operating segments have been aggregated into a single operating
segment taking into account the following factors:
The group operates mainly in India. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosures to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the
financial statements.

* these operating segments have similar long-term gross profit margins;

* the nature of the products and production processes are similar; and
» the methods used to distribute the products to the customers are the same.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies adopted in consolidated financial statements with the following
additional policies for Segment Reporting:

a. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue and
expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been inciuded under “unallocable cxpenses”.

b. Inter segment revenue and expenses are eliminated.

(ii) Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable segment.

Segment Revenue Segment Profit
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Clinics 34,373 10,682 4,416 (331)
Diagnostics 39,874 17,486 6,460 1,855
Spectra 28,210 15,625 1,764 (1,623)
Cradle 25,123 20,560 175 835
Sugar 2,355 1,787 196 (26)
Dialysis 5,618 4,117 377 18
Dental 2,815 1,555 302 (352)
Risk management 1 5 (32) (52)
Total 1,38,369 71,817 13,658 324
Less: Inter Segment Revenue (7.118) (3,639) 15 15
‘T'otal 1.31.251 68.178 13.673 339
Other income 965 2,450
Unallocated expenses (3,441) (2,752)
Finance costs (6,931) (6,689)
Loss before tax 4,266 (6.652)
(iii) Segment assets and liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Segment Assets
Clinics 11,234 10,329
Diagnostics 21,991 13,131
Spectra 16,423 17,585
Cradle 44,863 40,786
Sugar 4,835 4,654
Dialysis 6,239 4,867
Dental 3,594 3,024
Risk management 65 65
Total Segment Assets 1,09,244 94,441
Unallocated assets 85,293 81,051
Elimination (78.763) (74.285)

Consolidated total assets 1,15,774 1,01,207




Segment liabilities
Clinics

Diagnostics

Spectra

Cradle

Sugar

Dialysis

Dental

Risk management

Total Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Elimination
Consolidated total liabilities

(iv) Other segment information

Depreciation and Amortisation

12,852 11,114
14,512 9,139
9,829 11,147
43,206 36,379
1,412 1,462
4,593 3,714
4,809 4,204
113 82
91,326 77,241
22,062 22,799
(5,178) (1,836)
1,08.210 98,204

Addition to Non Current Assets

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Clinics 1,614 1,554 466 395
Diagnostics 1,069 922 1,923 654
Spectra 2,318 2,291 632 110
Cradle 3,422 2,999 2,284 2,643
Sugar 150 193 2 3
Dialysis 559 421 1,148 998
Dental 298 373 9 104
Total 9.430 8,753 6,464 4,907
Note 35 Disclosures required under sec 22 of the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(i) Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the end of the year 400 145
(ii) Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount as at the end of 28 7
the year
(iii) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year - -
(iv) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16) - -
(v) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) -
(vi) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments already made - -
(vii) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act (ii) 28 7

+(iv)

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors,
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Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 37: Employee benelits

a, Defined contribution plans

The Group makes Provident Fund contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualiying employees. The Group recognised T 879 Lakhs
(Year ended March 31, 2021: % 705 Lakhs) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and loss.

b. Defined benefit plans

The Group provides to the eligible employees defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity governed by Payment of Gratuity act, 1972. The gratuity
plan provides for a lump sumn payment (o vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15 days’ salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five continuous years of service. The
measurement date used for determining retirement benefits for gratuity is March 31,

The following tables summarise net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss, the status of funding and the amount recognised in

the Balance sheet for the gratuity plan:
(i) Balance Sheet

The liabilities position of the defined benefit plans at the Balance Shect datc werc:

Particulars Astat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Present value of obligation 1,009 696
Fair Value of plan assets (124) (116)
(Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 885 580
Advance contribution for gratuity (refer note 10) 9 2
Provision for gratuity (refer note 20) 894 582
(ii) Movements in Present Value of Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars Plan Assets Plan Obligation Total
As at April 1, 2020 110 382 272)
Current service cost - 147 (147)
Past Service cost 1 1)
Interest cost - 22 (22)
Interest Income 7 - 7
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from changes in financial assumptions - 2) 2
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from experience adjustments - 251 (251)
Remeasurement - Return on Assets (Excluding Interest Income) 1) - (1)
Benefit Paid - (105) 105
As at March 31, 2021 116 696 (580)
Current service cost - 209 (209)
Interest cost = 43 (43)
Interest Income 8 - 8
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from changes in financial assumptions - (12) 12
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from experience adjustments - 216 (216)
Benefit Paid - (143) 143
As at March 31, 2022 124 1,009 (885)
(iii) Statement of Profit and Loss
The charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Employee Benefit Expenses
Current service cost (209) 147
Past service cost - 1
Interest cost (43) 22
Interest Income 8 @)
Other Adjustments - -
Net impact on profit before tax (244) 163




Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Remeasurement gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended

i
il U March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans;

Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from changes in financial assumptions 12 2
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from experience adjustments (216) 2s1)
Return on Plan Assets(Excluding Interest Income) - )
Remeasurement gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income (204) (250)

(v) Assumptions

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan obligations of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the Balance Sheet, assumptions
under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 7.33% -7.4% 6.88% - 6.92%
Attrition rate 3.00%- 35.00% 3.00%- 35.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%

Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Ultimate (2012-14) Ultimate
table table

Mortality rate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

(v) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the overall plan obligations to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 978 1,031 678 716
Attrition rate (1% movement) 1,037 972 695 698
Salary escalation rate (1% movement) 1.002 1,006 720 673

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the same method used to calculate the liability recognised in the Balance Sheet has been applied.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous year.

(v) Maturity analysis
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation;

e

As at As at
March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021
Within 1 year 271 181
1-2 year 226 157
2-3 year 187 129
3-4 year 153 105
4-5 year 119 81
5-10 year 245 171

¢. Compensated absences

The Group pay compensated absences to employees as an when claimed subject to the policies of the Group. The significant actuarial assumptions
used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 7.33% -7.4% 6.88% - 6.92%
Attrition rate 3.00%- 35.00% 35.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%

Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Ultimate  (2012-14) Ultimate
table table

Mortality rate




Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited
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Note 38: Related party transactions
a) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

Name of the party

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited

Apollo Pharmacies Limited

Air India Limited

Apollo Health Resources Limited

Apollo Munich Health Insurance Company Limited
Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited

Blue Star Limited

Crisil Risk And Infrastructure Solutions Limited
Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Limited
Family Health Plan Insurance TPA Limited
Franklin Templeton Asset Management (India) Private Limited
Healthnet Global Limited

Hero Motorcorp Limited

Indian Hospitex Private Limited

l.ifetime Wellness Rx international Limited
Medihauxe Healthcare Private Limited
Medsmart Logistics Private Limited

Medvarsity Online Limited

Meher Distributors Private Limited

Piramal Enterprises Limited

Indo National Limited

P Obul Reddy and Sons

Searchlight Health Private Limited

Stemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited
Trivitron Healthcare Private Limited

Wipro GE Healthcare Private Limited

ACC Limited

Wipro Limited

Apollo Gleneagles Hospitals Limited

Imperial Hospitals and Research Centre Limited
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited
Maxivision Laser Centre Private Limited

Sanofi Synethelabo (India) Private Limited
Together against Diabetic Foundation Trust
Apollo Telehealth Services Private I imited
Apollo Shine Foundation

Apollo Rajshree Hospitals Private Limited
Apolio Hospitals International Limited

Hdfc Ergo General Insurance Company Limited
Apollo 24X7

AHLL - One Apollo

Apollo Hospitals Educational And Research Foundation
Apollo Institute Of Medical Scineces And Research
Apollo International Limited

Apollo Wellness Rx Limited

Bluestar Limited

Mrs Sangita Reddy

Mr.Krishnan Akhileswaran

Mr. Chandra Sekhar Chivukula

Mr. Prashant Jhaveri

Mr. Lalit Nagpal

Mr.Ashish Maheshwari

Mr. Sivaram

Kamal Saboo

Anindith Reddy Konda

Mukesh Sabharwal

Mr.Narotham Reddy

Dr.Chandramohan Raju

Dr.Shafath Ahmed

Dr.Sanketh Kethi Reddy

Dr.Sabitha MR

Dr. Arun Chittaranjan

Dr.KV Arun

Mr.Anupam Sibal

Dr. G.S.K. Velu

Nature of relationship

Holding Company

Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Fntities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entitics in Which KMP/Dircctors or their relatives arc interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directots or their relatives are interested
Entitics in Which KMP/Dircetors or their relatives arc interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Dircctors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KIMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Entities in Which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
KMP (Managing Director)

Director

KMP (Chief Executive Officer)

KMP (Chief Financial Officer) up to November 2021

KMP (Chief Financial Officer) upto March 12, 2021

KMP (Chief Financial Officer) From Novmeber 2021

KMP (Company secretary) till February 15, 2020

KMP (Company secretary) from August 13, 2020

Director

Director upto March 20, 2021

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

b) Transactions during the year:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of services
Stemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited 52 62
Apollo Gleneagles Hospitals Limited 93 35
Imperial Hospitals and Research Centre 1 imited 252 177
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited 10 130
Maxivision Laser Centre Private Limited 8 -
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 9,843 5,091
Apollo Pharmacies Limited 12 11
Medversity Online Limited 1 -
Lifetime Wellness Rx Intemational Limited 86 5
Sanofi Synethelabo (India) Private Limited 3 -
Hero Motorcorp Limited 5 4
Apollo Teleheal(h Services Privale Limited 59 24
Franklin Templeton Asset Management (India) Private Limited 1 1
Hdfe Ergo General Insurance Company Limited 1,026 601
Apollo Ilcalth Resources Limited 8 8
Family Health Plan Insurance TPA Timited 1,423 1,302
ACC Limited 3 -
Bluestar Limited 1 -
Air India Limited 9 -
Commission on pharmacy revenue
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited - 106
Apollo Pharmacies Limited 278 124
Other operating income - consultancy
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 4 -
Other operating income - others
Stemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited 182 138
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited - 175
Other Income Royalty fees
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited - 16
Purchase of medical consumables
Apollo Pharmacies Limited 3,323 1,111
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 7,020 1,237
Medsmart Logistics Private Limited 2,058 1,345
Trivitron Healthcare Private Limited 7 15
Apollo Hospitals International Limited - 2
Apollo Rajshree Hospitals Private Limited - 3
Medihauxe Healthcare Private Limited 2 -
Imperial Hospital And Research Centre Limited 27 -
Laboratory test
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 1,588 485
Imiperial Hospitals and Research Centre Limited 18 -
Apollo Gleneagles Hospitals Limited - 45
Indraprasta Medical Corpotation Ltd 101 -
Apollo Hospitals International Ltd 37 -
Rent
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 157 146
Imperial Hospitals and Research Centre Limited 6 7
Purchase of asset
Wipro GE Healthcare Private Limited 253 201
Trivitron Healthcare Private Limited - 19
Blue Star Limited 54 -
Medsmart Logistics Private Limited 1 -
Revenue sharing expenses
Lifetime Wellness Rx International Limited 13 5
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited - 96
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

IT Charges

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 15 14
Professional charges

Crisil Risk And Infrastructure Solutions Limited 4 4

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Timited 15 6
Prference share capital

Dr. G.SK. Velu 150 -
Professional fee to doctors and others

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 17 8

Imperial Hospitals and Research Centre Limited - 19

Dr.Shafath Ahmed 11 6

Dr.Sanketh Kethi Reddy 21 16

Dr.K V Arun 10 wl
Consultancy charges

Mr.Krishnan Akhilcswaran 9 10

Mr.Narotham Reddy 9 10

Mr.Anupam Sibal 1 5
Corporate Purchases

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd 1,841 -

Indraprasta Medical Corpotation Ltd 23 -

Apollo Hospitals International Ltd 166 -
Apollo Rajshree Hospitals Private Limited 96 -

Cost of services - others

Apollo Telehealth Services Private Limited 3

Healthnet Global Limited 62 150

Searchlight Health Private Limited 1 12

Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Limited 70 42

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd 259 -
House keeping expenses

Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Timited 149 118
Repairs and maintenance - others

Wipro GE Healthcare Private Limited 198 84

Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Limited 3 1

Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited -

Searchlight Health Private Limited 6 6

Blue Star Limited 16 -
Staff welfare expenses

Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited = 20

Medsmart Logistics Private I.imited 5 -
Availing of services

Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Limited - 7

Searchlight Health Private Limited - 3

Healthnet Global Limited - 1

Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited 57

Wipro Limited 1
Managerial Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel 441 361
Share Based Payments

Key Managerial Personnel 78 109



Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in 2 lakhs unless otherwise stated)

¢) Balances receivable from/payable to related parties are as follows:

Particulars ikl Asjat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade receivables
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 3,426 2,337
Apollo Pharmacies Limited 1 11
I ifetime Wellness Rx International Limited 102 102
Stemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited 381 188
Apollo Glencagles Hospitals Limited 30 29
Imperial Hospitals and Research Centre Limited 44 25
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited 37 50
Maxivision Laser Centre Private Limited 14 7
Medvarsity Online Limited 1 1
Together Against Diabetic Foundation Trust 19 19
Family Health Plan Insurance TPA Limited 692 731
Apollo Health Resources Limited - -13
Apollo Munich Health Insurance Company Limited 61 -
Apollo Telehealth Services Private Limited 28 16
Hero Molorcorp Limited 1 1
Hdfc irgo General Insurance Company Limited 2 125
Air India Limited 16 -
Apollo Institute Of Medical Scineces And Research 24 -
Apollo Hospitals Educational And Research Foundation 15 -
AHLL - One Apollo 29 -
Apollo 24X7 2,102 -
PUP Mysore  Apollo BGS Hospital 12 -
Adavance from customers
Apollo Health Resources Limited 19 -
Apollo Munich Health Insurance Company Limited 52 -
Hdfc Ergo General Insurance Company Limited 13 -
Unbilled Revenue
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 337 78
Apollo Phammacies Limited 22 44
Lifetime Wellness Rx International Limited 8 1
Imperial Hospitals and Research Centre Limited 75 13
Maxivision I aser Centre Private T imited 1 -
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited - 10
Apollo Gleneagles Hospitals Limiled 9 11
Air India Limited 1 -
Family Health Plan Insurance TPA Limited 1 3
Apollo Health Resources Limited 1 7
Apollo Telehealth Services Private Limited 52 27
Stemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited 36 34
Trade payables
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 4,417 2,691
Apollo Pharmacies Limited 2,640 2,689
Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Limited 35 105
Searchlight Health Private Limited 6 13
Apollo Hospitals Intemnational Limited = 2
Imperial Hospitals and Research Centre Limited 5 -
Lifetime Wellness Rx Intemational Limited 45 34
Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited 7 12
Trivitron Healthcare Private Limited 12 20
Medsmart Logistics Private Limited 345 383
Healthnet Global Limited 56 23
Indian Hospitex Private Limited 1 1
Apollo Telehealth Services Private Limited 2 3
Wipro Limited - 35
Wipro GE Healthcare Private Limited 46 9
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited 37 47
Apollo Health Resources Limited 2 B
Blue Star Limited 4 -
Apollo Wellness Rx Limited 30 -
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Particulars Al As at
2 Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Advance to Vendors

Blue Star Limited 2 -

Wipro GE Healthcare Limited 25 -
Deposit payable

Apollo Phamacies Limited 350 351
Financial Guarantee Due

Dr. G.SK. Velu 270 90
Preference Share Capital

Dr. G.S.K. Velu - 611
Letter of comfort taken from

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited 20,310 20,310

Space intentionally left blank
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Note 39 Share-based payments

A

Employee stock appreciation rights

Board of Directors in the meeting held on August 6, 2019, approved the grant of equity settled SARs to eligible employees of the Company (AHLL and ASHPL)
with the grant date of April 1, 2020. 4,314,656 SAR’s issued to the eligible employees on August 6, 2019 with a grant date of April 1, 2020 having a vesting
period of 3- 4 years from the date of issue of such letters. Portion of the ESARs vest based on BU's performance and the remaining based on AHLL consol
performance.

Number of ESAR outstanding as at March 31, 2022 for active employees is 3,170,349

The SARs provide (he employees with the right to receive shares upon liquidity event as defined in the scheme, having a market value equal to the market
appreciation since the grant date of the rights. Nomination and Remuneration committee in their meeting held in August 2021, assessed Cradle and Diagnostics
have achieved EBITDA of 100% of AOP for YE March 31, 2021 and rest of the BUs could not acheive the AOP target.

The Group elects to adopt recognizing expense basis Fair Market Value of SARs over vesting period. Accordingly, the Group has recognised an expense of Z 256
lakhs for March 2022 (% 344 lakhs for March 31, 2021).

Summary of stock options No. of stock options o
For the year For the year
2021-22 2020-21
Options outstanding on April 1 33,01,690 -
Options granted during the year 43,14,656
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year 1,31,341 10,12,966
Options exercised during the year - -
Options outstanding on March 31 31,70,349 33,01,690
Options vested but not exercised on March 31 31,70,349 33,01,690

Employee share option plan of the Company

(i) Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited

The Company by virtue of service and subscription agreement entered into with the doctors for continuance of services with Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private
Limited (ASH) inline with the scheme implemented by the erstwhile company (i.c. Nova Speciality Hospitals Private Limited) has agreed to issue Fully
Convertible Debentures (FCD) for a value calculated in accordance with performance based formulae at the time of acquisition.

These FCD are issued in respect of the future services which will be rendered by the doctors' and hence is in the nature of share based payment in terms of Ind AS
102. These FCD issued would be convertible upon the expiry of service requirement and other conditions as stipulated by the respective agreements.

The compensation costs of stock options granted to employees are accounted by the Cumpany vver the vesling period.

Summary of stock options No. of stock options
For the year For the year
2021-22 2020-21
Options outstanding on April 1 1,595 1,595

Options granted during the year = .
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year - -
Options exercised during the year - -
Options outstanding on March 31 1,595 1,595
Options vested but not exetcised on March 31 - -

Exercise price is X Nil

Management has estimated the fair values of options granted at ¥ 25,764.

Space intentionally left blank



(ii) Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited
The Company has granted 44,370 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of ¥ 10 each during the year ended 31st March, 2018 to the eligible employees of the Company.
Options are granted under ASCL Employee Stock Option Plan - 2017 ("ESOP 2017") which vest over a period of three years commencing from the respective date
of grant.

The compensation costs of stock options granted to employees are accounted by the Company over the vesting period.

Summary of stock options No. of stock options
For the year For the year
2021-22 2020-21
Options outstanding on April 1 - 44,370
Options granted during the year - -
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year - 44,370

Options exercised during the year - -
Options outstanding on March 31 = -
Options vested but not cxercised on March 31 -

Exercise price is ¥ 89.42
Management has estimated the fair values of options granted at % 275.70.
The Employees Stock Option Plan - 2017 was completed and closed during the previous year.

(iii) Alliance Dental Care Limited
The Company has granted 56,735 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of ¥ 10 each during the year ended 31st March, 2017 to the directors and eligible employees of the
Company. Options are granted under Alliance Dental CSOP Scheme 2016, which vest over a period of four years commencing from the respective date of grant.

The compensation costs of stock options granted to employees are accounted by the Company over the vesting period.

Summary of stock options No. of stock options
For the year For the year

2021-22 2020-21
Options outstanding on April 1 . 9,456
Options granted during the year - -
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year - -
Options exercised during the year - 9,456
Options outstanding on March 31 . -
Options vested but not exercised on March 31 - -

Exercise price is X 10
Management has estimated the fair values of options granted at % 194,
The Alliance Dental ESOP Scheme 2016 was completed and closed during the previous year.

(iv) Apollo Dialysis Private Limited
The Company has granted 55,566 Ordinary (Equity) Shares of ¥ 10 each during the year ended 31st March, 2017 to the directors of holding company and
directors and eligible employees of the Company. Options are granted under Apollo Dialysis ESOP Scheme 2016, which vest over a period of four years
comumencing from the respective date of grant,

The compensation costs of stock options granted to employees are accounted by the Company over the vesting period.

Summary of stock options No. of stock options
For the year For the year
2021-22 2020-21
Options outstanding on April 1 - 9,261

Options granted during the year - -
Options forfeited/lapsed during the year - -
Options exercised during the year - 9,261
Options outstanding on March 31 - -
Options vested but not exercised on March 31 - -

Exercise price is ¥ 10
Management has estimated the fair values of options granted at ¥ 27.
The Apollo Dialysis ESOP Scheme 2016 was completed and closed during the previous year.
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Note 40: Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group eams revenue primarily by providing healthcarc services operates through various multispecialty clinics, diagnostics, spectia, cradle, sugai, dental and dialysis
centers across India. Other sources of revenue include revenue eamed through Operation and Management (O&M) contracts, brand license agreements and contracts for

clinical trials.
Revenues for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Disaggrepation of revenue

The following table provides information about disaggregated revenue by geographical market, major service line, timing of revenue recognition and category of customer.

The spread of operation of the Group are only in India and so the below table summaries the region wise revenue within Tndia.

Healthcare services

Region Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tamilnadu 18,975 10,925
Telangana 25,739 10,155
Kamataka 31,366 16,906
Delhi 12,703 9,460
Maharastra 18,041 3,357
Others 28,666 18,844
Inter company eliminations (4,239) (1,469)
T'otal revenue 1,31,251 68,178
Category of Customer Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash 48,728 39,909
Credit 86,762 29,738
Inter company eliminations (4,239) (1,469)
Total revenue 1,31,251 68,178
Nature of treatment* Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
In-Patient 37,951 29,135
Out-Patient 97,539 40,512
Inter company eliminations (4.239) (1.469)
Total revenue 1.31.251 68.178
* this disclosure pertain to healthcare services segment only
Timing of revenue recognition Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Services transferred at point in time 1,33,200 68,312
Services transferred over a period of time 2,290 1,335
Inter company eliminations (4,239 (1.469)
Total revenue 1,31,251 68,178
Contract liability
Changes in advance received from customers are as follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 591 348
Additions(on account of advance received from the customer during the year) 19,398 15,300
Revenue recognized that was included in advance received from customers balance at heginning of the year 17,651 15,057
Total revenue 2,338 591
The total of dissaggregated revenue of healthcare disclosed above would agree to the disclosures made in the operating segment.
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price is as follows:
Healthcare Services
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contract price (as reflected in the invoice raised on the customer as per the terms of the contract with customer) 1,45,232 76,873
Reduction towards variable components: -
-Discounts granted to customers 5,259 3,696
-Customer loyalty points given to customers 96 35
Reduction towards monies received on behalf of ; -
-Fee for Service Consultants 4,387 3,083
- Revenue sharing - 412
Reduction towards Inter-company eliminations 4,239 L1469
Revenue recognised in the profit & loss account 1,31,251'/ 68,178
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Note 41 Financial instruments

(i) Capital management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Group's capital management.

The Group manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise retumns to shareholders. The capital structure of the
company is based on management's judgement of its strategic day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market
confidence,

The management and the Board of Directors monitors the return on capital to shareholders. The Group may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or is
necessary, adjust its capital structure.

(ii) Financial risk management

The Group’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financials risks, namely Interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior
management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Group’s risk management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, periodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the changes in the policy
accordingly. The key risks and mitigating actions are overseen by the Board of Directors of the Group.

A Interest risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because Group borrow funds at both fixed and tloating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's:
Profit of the year ended March 31, 2022 would decrease / increase by ¥ 126 lakhs (Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 would decrease/increase by ¥ 124
lakhs ). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

B Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company takes due
care while extending any credit as per the approval matrix approved by Board of Directors.

Trade receivables
Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to Company's customer base being large and diverse. All trade receivables are
reviewed and assessed for default on a monthly basis.

Historical experience of collecting receivables is that credit risk is low. Hence, trade receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets. The
Company does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counter party.

Other financial assets

The Company maintain exposure in cash and cash equivalent, term deposits with banks. The Company's maximum exposure of credit risk as at March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021 is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

C Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Also, the Company has unutilised credit limits with
banks. The Company maintained a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service the financial liabilities on a day to day basis.

The Company regularly maintains the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus
cash generated, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash
equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing short term deposits with appropriate maturities to optimise the cash returns on
investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

March 31, 2022
Particulars Trade payables Lease Liabilities Other financial liabilities  Borrowings
Less than 1 year 26,302 7,465 1,534 4,388
More than 1 year and less than 5 year - 26,058 - 17,910
More than 5 year - 54,559 354 2,908
March 31, 2021
Particulars Trade payables Lease Liabilities Ot her financial liabilities  Borrowings
Less than 1 year 18,487 7,139 1,974 3,180
More than 1 year and less than 5 year - 26,178 } - 18,599

More than 5 year = 56,106 /3] 354 4,249
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Note 42  Category-wise classification of Financial Instruments

Nolce 43

Note 44

The carrying and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Fair value Carrving value Fair value
Particulars Hierarch As at As at As at As at
¥ March 31,2022 March 31,2021  March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Measured at Amortised cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents Level 2 5,589 4210 5,589 4210
(i1) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents Level 2 10,392 10,483 10,392 10,483
(iii) Trade receivables Level 2 14,289 9,288 14,289 9,288
(iv) Other financial assets * Level 2 4471 3,952 4471 3,952
Measured at FVTQCI
(1) Investment in equity instruments Level 3 18 18 18 18
Total Financial nssets 34759 27,951 34759 27951
Financial liabilities
Measured at Amortised cost
(i) Borrowings Level 2 25,206 26,029 25,206 26,029
(ii) Trade payables Level 2 26,302 18,487 26,302 18,487
(iii) Other financial liabilities ** Level 2 1,888 2,328 1,888 2,328
(iv) Lease liabilities Level 2 48,636 48,351 48.636 48.351
Tota! Financial liabilities 1,02,032 95,195 1,02.032 95,195

* Other financial assets includes Security deposits with the vendors, interest receivable from related parties and banks.

*¥* Other financial liabilities includes interest accrued on the long term debt, security deposits received from customers and payable on purchase of fixed assets.

Calculation of foir values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used for the
year ended March 31, 2021,

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as at balance sheet date.

The fair values of investments in unquoted equity investments has been estimated using a discounted cash flow model under income approach. The valuation
requires management to make certain assumptions about model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate and credit risk, the probabilities of the various
estimates within range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management estimate of fair value for these unquoted investments,

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on August 17, 2018 has given an approval to the "Scheme of arrangement" of the business. Pursuant
to the restructuring plan, a new wholly owned subsidiary AHLL Diagnostics Ltd. (ADL) has been formed and the Diagnostics division of the Company will be
sold by way of a slump sale to the newly incorporated Wholly owned subsidiary.

The Company is in the process of obtaining regulatory approval from National Company Law Tribunal for the restructuring plan. Based on the present status,
Management is of the opinion that the procedural formalities will take 1 to 1.5 years, for the restructuring plan to be take place. Hence the transaction is not
considered for disclosure under Ind AS- 105 — Non-Current Assets held for sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Note 45 Fair value hierarchy

Note 46

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in Note 42 above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identified assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements] and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements]

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices for identified instruments in an active market.
Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.

This note provides information ahout how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at the fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair value of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique and other inputs used).

Financial assets/ Fai Fair value Valuation technique Significant Relationsh'lp .
A air value as at . unobservable inputs to
Financial liabilities hierarchy and key input unobservable input fair value
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discounted cash flow | Long term growth rates, | A slight increase in long

model under income taking into account term revenue growth

approach was used to | management's experience| rates used in isolation
capture the present | and knowledge of market | would result in increase

2.59% of equity 2.59% of equity value of the expected | conditions of the specific | in the fair value (Refer

investment in M/s. | investment in M/s. future economic industry at 1.00%. Note i below)
Searchlight Health | Searchlight Health benefits to be derived
. . Private Limited Private Limited from the ownership of| Weighted average cost of | A slight increase in the
Investments in equity engaged in engaged in the investee. capital (WACC)as  |WACC used in isolation
instrument at FVTOCI providing providing Level 3 determined ranging from | would result in decrease
(unquo%t‘i‘d) infrastructure infrastructure 16.11% (As at March 31, | in the fair value (Refer
(Note iii) facilities to hospitals| facilities to hospitals 2021: 16.11%) Note ii below)
and others and and others and
domiciled in India Z| domiciled in India ¥
18 18
Notes

(i) If the Long-term growth rates used were 1% higher / lower while all other variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the shares would increase /
(decrease) by T 128,061 and % (108,525) respectively.

(ii) A 1% increase / (decrease) in WACC or discount rate used while holding all other variables constant would (decrease) / increase the carrying amount of the
unquoted equity investments by  (96493) and ¥ 114,234 respectively.

(iii): These investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for long term strategic purpose. Upon the application of Ind AS 109, the
company has chosen to designate (hese investments in equily instruments as at FVTOCI irrevocably as the Management believes that this provides a more
meaningful presentation for long term strategic investments, than reflecting changes in fair value immediately in profit or loss.

As per the Put option agreement entered into with International Finance Corporation (IFC) dated October 26, 2016, IFC has the right to exercise the put option on

shares from the end of 8" year till the end of 12 year of the subscription either on Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited (the parent company) or on Apollo Health
and Lifestyle Limited.

The management based on its assessment of the potential exercise of the options and per valuation of the Company, has assessed that these options, if exercised
will be on the parent company, as the parent is a listed company, and accordingly, has determined the fair value of the option to be nil and as such, the instrument
has been considered as equity.
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Note 47

Note 48:

Note 49:

Note 51:

Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure

During the year, the amount required to be spent on corporate social responsibility activities amounted to Rs. 5 lakhs (31 March 2021 : nil) in accordance with
Section 135 of the Act. The following amounts were actually spent during the current & previous year:

Particulars

CSR activities during the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

i. Construction/acquisition of any asset 2 3 -
ii. Purpose other than (i) above - 5 5

Note: Since the provisions of CSR are applicable to the Group for the first time in FY 2021-22, the provision has been made for the amount required to be
spent and the same will be spent in the first quarter ot FY 2022-23

Other statutory information
i) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.

if) The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off,
iif) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
iv) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
v) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
vi) 'The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or enti ty(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiarics)
or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vii) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

viii) The Group does not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Group acquired 100 % shares of Surya Fertility Center Private Limited, for a consideration of ¥ 360 lakhs. Surya
Fertility Center Private Limited became the subsidiary w.e.f. November 1, 2020. Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase (acquisition)
method as per the provisions of Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets transferred,
liabilities incurred or assumed. The Company recorded a Goodwill amount of 235 lakhs.

Descriptivn Purchase Price allocated

Net Assets* 125
Goodwill 235
Purchase Consideration 360

* Net assets include property, plant and equipment, cash and bank, other advances, trade payables and deferred tax balances
The Code on Social Security,2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in

September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However,the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The
Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective,
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Note 52: Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to current period’s classification in order to comply with the
requirements of the amended Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013 effective 1st April, 2021,

Note 53: The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 20, 2022,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Apollo Hlealth and Lifestyle Limited

Sangita R‘:eddy | Krishnan Akhileswaran
Managing Director Director
(DIN: 00006285) (DIN: 5299539)

Place: Hyderabad Place: Chennai
A M2, 2022 Date : May 20, 2022

2
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r Chivukula Ashish Maheshwari i(umalS‘nbuo
icor Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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1.

2.

A.

Corporate Information

Apolio Ilealth and Lifestyle Limited (‘the Company') is a Public Company incorporaled in India. The main
business of the Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group™) is to provide comprehensive, high-quality
healthcare services by establishing owned and franchisee clinics & hospitals across India. The principal
activities of the Group include operation of Specialty hospitals, Maternity hospitals, Clinics, Diagnostic
centers, Sugar clinics, Dental clinics and Dialysis centers. The parent Company is Apollo Hospitals Enterprise
Limited.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The financial statements which comprise the Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and 1.0ss, the Cash flow
statement and the Statement of changes in Equity (“Financial Statements™) have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013, read
together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rulcs
issucd thereafter. The Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The Consolidated financial statements include accounts of Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited, Apollo Bangalore Cradle
Limited, Kshema Healthcare Private Limited, Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited, Alliance Dental Care Limited,
Apollo Dialysis Private Limited, AHLL Risk Management Private Limited, AHLL Diagnostics Limited,
Surya Fertility Centre Limited; all together referred to as “the Group”.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakh
except otherwise stated.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair valuc
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind
AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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C. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. The Consolidated financial
statements comprise the financial statements of the group as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. Control
is achieved when the Company:

» has power over the investee;
* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
» has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. When the Company has less

than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability (o direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting
rights in an investee arc sufficient to give it power, including:

+ the size of the Company's holding of voting rights rclative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

* potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

« rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable Ind AS). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.
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D.

a)

b)

<)

d)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires Management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income
and expenses for the periods presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of Financial Statements are prudent and
reasonable.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimates that have been made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Uscful lives of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge
in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets
are determined by Management at the time the asset is acquired and is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future
events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. This reassessment may result in change
in depreciation expense in future periods.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the
discounted cash flow model, which involves various judgments and assumptions. The Group also engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation in certain cases. The appropriateness of valuation
techniques and inputs to the valuation model are reviewed by the Management.

Income taxes

The Group’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for
the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected
to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Share based payments

Share-based payments Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of
the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This
estimation requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The
Black Scholes valuation model has been used by the Management for share-based payment transactions. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in
Note 39.
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)

g

h)

)

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments annually, or more frequently when there is an
indicalion for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
accounted for. The recoverable amounts have been determined based on value in use calculations which uses
cash flow projections covering generally a period of five years (which are based on key assumptions such as
margins, expected growth rates based on past experience and Management’s expectations/ extrapolation of
normal increase/ steady terminal growth rate) and appropriate discount rates that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and risks specific to these investments. The cash flow projections
included estimates for five years developed using internal forecasts and terminal growth rate thereafter. The
management believes that any reasonable possible change in key assumptions on which recoverable amount
is based is not expected to cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of the investments.

Defined benefit obligations
The Group uses actuarial assumptions viz., discount rate, mortality rates, salary escalation rate etc., to
determine such employee benefit obligations.

Claims, provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an outflow of
funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on
management’s assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take
number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is
provided in notes to the financial statements.

Other estimates

The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Group estimates the probability
of collection of accounts receivable by analysing historical payment patterns, customer concentrations,
customer credit-worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates,
additional allowances may be required.

Lease commitments - the Company as lessee

The Group has entered into leases for centers and office premises. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the office premises / centers and the fair value of the asset, that it does not retain
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the land and the office premises and accounts for the contracts
as operating leases. Further, refer note 34, for effect of transition to Ind AS 116, classification of leases and
other disclosures relating to leases.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Company, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

On acquisition, the Group assesses the classification of the acquiree’s assets and liabilities and reclassifies
them where the classification is inappropriate for Group purposes.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (il any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assels acquired and the
liabilities assumed.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised based on the difference between the purchase consideration
and assets acquired during acquisition. The same is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not rcversed in subscquent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

The Company earns revenuc primarily by providing healthcare services operates through various
multispecialty hospitals and clinics across India.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized to
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured. Revenue is reduced for rebates and loyalty points granted upon purchase and are stated net of
discounts wherever applicable.

The Company assessed its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine it is acting as principal
or agent. The service revenues are presented net of related doctor fee in cases where the Group is not the
primary obligor and does not have the pricing latitude.

Rendering of services:
(a) Healthcare Services
Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for outpatient healthcare services. Services include charges
for consultation for medical professional services and diagnostic services.

(b) Other Services

(i) Project Consultancy income is recognised based on the contractual terms as and when the services
are rendered.

(i) One-time franchise license fees is recognised based on achievement of the milestones as per the
terms of the contract and where ever there is no bifurcation of total fee then over the period of the
agreement.

(iii) Franchisee license fee is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of the contracts.

(iv) Other services fee is recognized on basis of the services rendered and as per the terms of the
agreement.

Loyalty Points
Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the Group’s loyalty points schemes are

accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and the award credits granted. The consideration allocated
to the award credits is measured by reference to their fair value - the amount for which the award credits
could be sold separately. Such consideration is not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale
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transaction - but is deferred and recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and the Group’s
obligations have been fulfilled.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income
Rental Income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether
the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the stand alone selling
price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those that
are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced
at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if
not priced at the standalone selling price.

The Group receive payments from customers based upon contractual billing schedules and upon submission
of requisite documentation; accounts receivable are recorded when the right to consideration becomes
unconditional. Contract assets includes amounts related to our contractual right to consideration for
completed performance obligations not yet invoiced. Contract liabilities include payments received in
advance of satisfying a performance obligation as per the terms of the contract. Revenue in this case shall
be recognised based on the aforementioned accounting policy as applicable to that customer.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

- The Group’s contracts with customers could include promises to render multiple services to a customer.
The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in
the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the
deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

- Judgement is also applied in the assessment of principal versus agent considerations with respect to
contracts with customers and doctors which is determined based on the substance of the arrangement.

- Judgement is also applied to determine the transaction price of the contract. The transaction price shall
include a fixed amount of customer consideration and components of variable consideration which
constitutes amounts payable to customer, discounts, commissions, disallowances and redemption patterns of
loyalty customers. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

Use of Practical expedients
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The Group has applied practical expedient with respect to non disclosure of information with respect of
remaining performance obligations considering the fact that the company's performance obligations, i.e. the
treatment in case of healthcare segment and the lab investigation segment has an original expected duration
of one year or less.

Significant financing component
The Group has applied the practical expedient with respect of non-adjustment of transaction price for the
effects of significant financing components, since the company expects at the inception of the contract that
the period between the receipt of consideration from the customer and the satisfaction of performance
obligations will be one year or less.

Recognition of asset with respect to cost of obtaining a contract and cost to fulfil the contract.

The Group has applied practical expedient of recognizing the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an
expense when incurred since the company expects that the amortisation period of the asset that the entity
otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.
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The impact of applying Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers instead of applying erstwhile
Ind AS 18 Revenue is insignificant.

H. Leases

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at
the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country
of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and Right-of-Use of asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows. Further, refer note 34, for effect of transition to
Ind AS 116, classification of leases and other disclosures relating to leases.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income.
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Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of
the lease.

1. Borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale,

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

J.  Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Employee benefits in the form of provident fund, employees’ state insurance fund and labour welfare fund
are considered as defined contribution plan. Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as amended, the Group provides for gratuity, a defined
benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity plan’) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity plan provides a lump-
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitations or termination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employee’s salaries and tenure of employment with the Group. Liabilities
with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Sheet date using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
* service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);
* net interest expense or income; and
* remeasurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings
and not reclassified to profit or loss.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a
portion of the unutilised accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash
at retirement or termination of employment. The Group records an obligation for compensated absences in
the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Group measurés:
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the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Group expects to pay as a result
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Group fully contributes
all ascertained liabilities to the fund maintained with the Insurer. The Group recognises accumulated
compensated absences based on actuarial valuation. Non-accumulating compensated absences are
recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

K. Share-based payment transactions of the Group

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in notes to accounts.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. Al the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired, measured
initially at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until the liability is settled, and
at the date of settlement, the {air value of the liability is remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss for the year.

L. Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income for the year as
determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Taxable
profit differs from “Profit before tax” as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible
under the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Group
offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
such deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date.

Current and Deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

M. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. Cost comprises the purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable
expenditure in making the asset ready for its intended use and cost of borrowing till the date of capitalisation
in the case of assets involving material investment and substantial lead time.

An item of Property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expecled Lo arise from he continued use of asset. Any gain/loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of Property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is recognised on straight-line method as per the useful life

prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013
Estimated useful life is as follows:

Asset Useful lives in years

Plant and equipment 5- 15 years
Medical equipment 13 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vchicles 8 years

Electrical installation 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are periodically reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lower of estimated useful life and lease term.

Capital work in progress are items of Property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended
use and are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

N. Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of
an intangible asset comprises of purchase price and attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for
its intended use. Intangible assets are amortised on the straight line method over their estimated useful life.
Amortisation
Amortisation on Intangible assets is recognised on straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in

Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

Estimated useful life is as follows:

Asset Useful lives in years
Computer software 3 years
Non-compete fees Over the agreement period

Trademarks Over the agreement period
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The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
eftect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use

or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and Intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

The inventories comprise of medical consumables and others which are utilised in providing healthcare
services dealt with by the Group are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of these inventories
comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
after adjusting for applicable taxes wherever applicable, applying the First - In First - Out method.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle such obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of such obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
recovered and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asset or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial asset or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediatcly in the
Statement of the Profit and Loss.

Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are recognised on trade date. While, loans
and borrowings and payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Group are classified in the
following categories:

Non-derivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, investments in subsidiaries, equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
and non-derivative financial liabilities at amortised cost. Management delermines (he classification of its
financial instruments at initial recognition.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the Group's business model for which
it is held and on the substance of the contractual terms / arrangements.

Non - derivative financial assets
« Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting
date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and eligible current and non-current assets.

Cash comprises cash on hand, cash at bank, cheques on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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+ Investments in subsidiaries
On initial recognition, these instruments are recognised at fair value plus any directly  attributable
transaction costs. Subsequently they are measured at cost.

+ Investments in Equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by- instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income (OCI) pertaining
to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the "equity instruments through other
comprehensive income". The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
- It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
- On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
- ltis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedge instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably.

« Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. A financial asset which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate the financial asset, which otherwise meets amortised cost
or FVTOCI criteria, as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category arc measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the Statement o[ Prolit and Loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group de-recognises financial assets when the contractual right to the cash flows from the asset expires
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another party. On de-recognition of a financial asset (except as mentioned above for financial assets
measured at FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or
other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and gimilar options) through the
expected life of that financial instrument.
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Non-derivative financial liabilitics

» Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

» Financial liability subsequently measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables ate initially
recognized at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial liability

The Group de-recognises financial liabilities, when and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. 'L'he difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities de-
recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

S. Cash flow statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the
available information.

T. Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) attributable to the equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit / (loss) attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

U. Segment reporting

The Group uses the management approach for reporting information about segments in annual financial
statements. The management approach is based on the way the Chief Operating Decision maker organises
segment within a Group for making an operating decisions and assessing performance. Reportable segments
are based on services, legal structure, management structure and any other manner in which management
disaggregates a company. Based on the management approach model the Group has determined that its
business model is comprised of Clinics, Diagnostics, Cradle, Spectra, Dialysis, Dental and Risk
Management.

V. Recent accounting pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards

under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below. Ind AS
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16, Property Plant and equipment — The amendment clarifics that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the
directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its Standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that the
‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly
to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labor,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is
not expected to be material.

W. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1,
2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes
do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced while the Group is preparing the asset for its intended use.
Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Group does not
expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the “cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the “costs that relate directly to
the contract”. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Group does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the “10 percent” test of Ind AS 109
in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Group does not expect the amendment to have
any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in
order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because
of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Group does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its financial statements.




